
 1 

 
OFFICE OF THE SUPERINTENDENT OF SCHOOLS 

Peterborough, New Hampshire 
 

CONTOOCOOK VALLEY SCHOOL BOARD 
 

Tuesday, May 16, 2006 
 

Francestown Elementary School 
 

School Board Candidate Interview 
6:30 p.m. 

 
Board Meeting 

7 p.m. or Immediately Following Interview 
 

MINUTES 
 

Board          Administration 
Mary Allen, Beverly Bacon,      Keith Burke, Supt. 
Stewart Brock, Ray Cote,       Paul Bartolomucci, Asst. Supt. 
Gail Cromwell, Butch Estey,      MaryEllen Stanley, FES 
Bart Goodeve, Dan Harper,      Deb Lesure, AES 
Craig Hicks, Arthur Knight,       Sue Copley, PES 
Bill McKinnon, Tom Welden      Sue Dell, CVHS 
          Rick Nannicelli, GBS 
Beth SanMartino, CVEA       Tim Iwanowicz, GES 
          Linda Potter, SpEd 
 
1. Call to Order and Pledge of Allegiance  
Tom Welden called the meeting to order at 7:02 p.m.  The Pledge of Allegiance was recited. 
 
MaryEllen Stanley welcomed all present tonight.  She encouraged everyone to walk around the 
school and look at the studentÕs work.  Ms. Stanley introduced the FES staff.  The first grade will 
share their science unit as well as sing a song tonight.  Three young students spoke about the 
process of obtaining their new weather station and detailed how it worked.   
 
Tom Welden explained that before the meeting tonight Arthur Knight was interviewed for the 
vacant position on the Board representing Bennington.  The position was advertised and Mr. 
Knight was the only candidate to express an interest in the position. 
Butch Estey moved to appoint Arthur Knight as the Bennington School Board 
Representative.  Stewart Brock second.  Gail Cromwell abstained from the vote because 
she was not present during the interview.  All else in favor.   
Mr. Keith Burke swore in Arthur Knight as the new member of the Board representing Bennington.  
Witnessed by Mr. Paul Bartolomucci. 
 
2.  Minutes (Board Vote Required) 

a. May 2, 2006 
 
 
 



 2 

Butch Estey motioned to accept the minutes of the May 2, 2006 school board meeting.   
Stewart Brock second. Corrections were made on page 1 – item 1.  The word “formerly” 
should be “formally”.  On page 3 – item 4, Nan Fornal was not presented a plaque.  Also on 
page 3 – item 5, letter “C” – The Sex Offender Policy will be reviewed and brought to the 
Personnel Committee rather than back for a full Board review.  Unanimous. 
 
3.  Public Comment 
None. 
 
4.  Superintendent’s Report and Presentation of Business  

a.  Discipline Report 
Keith Burke distributed the discipline report.   
Stewart Brock asked if a fight was considered to be bullying.  Paul Bartolomucci said that they 
might but are not necessarily depending on the details of the incident.  Bart Goodeve asked for an 
example of how an incident gets on the report provided.  A report is made to the building 
administrator by anyone, a parent, bus driver or community member.  It is provided to Paul 
Bartolomucci by telephone within 24 hours followed up by a written report.  Butch Estey asked 
about the higher rate at GBS.  Paul Bartolomucci confirmed that there was a higher number at 
GBS in certain months.  Butch Estey thanked Paul for the non-answer.  Paul explained that further 
information could be provided in non-public. (See report attached) 
 

b.  Monthly Events Calendar 
Included in the Board packet. 

 
Keith Burke said that Tony Geraci, ConVal Food Service Director, has done a great job here at 
ConVal and has received some national recognition.  As a result, he has landed a position in 
Baltimore, MD running their food service program and will be leaving ConVal.  Two people will be 
sharing this position in the upcoming year. 

 
5.  Reports 

a. Principal 
Rick Nannicelli reported a very successful week with the 8th graders in Washington, D.C.  The 
students were very well behaved having received positive reports by both the hotel management 
and restaurant management.  Sue Dell reminded everyone that the Curriculum Committee would 
present a draft of the work done to date this Friday from 7:45 Ð 9 a.m. in the LHT.  Ms. Dell said 
that she hoped that as many Board members could attend as possible.  A copy of the draft of the 
report will be available on the ConVal website.  Deb Lesure said that two students will be 
recognized by the Fisher Cats tomorrow night for being very good students.  In addition, all grades 
will be represented at the Children at the Arts Festival.  Sue Copley, PES, invited everyone to 
come to the Children at the Arts Festival as well.  PES has engaged in a chess club.  ÒThe Wonder 
of WaterÓ has been a recent topic at PES and employees of the town and community have come in 
to discuss this with students.  Lastly, the first ever ÒScience DayÓ will take place on June 2nd.     
 

b. Teacher 
Beth SanMartino said that Jim Sweeney was nominated as CVEA President.  Mickey Johnson was 
nominated as Vice President,  Laurie Groleau as Secretary and Helene Newbold, Treasurer. 
 

c. Student 
None 
 
 

d. Education 
None.  The next Education Committee meeting will take place on May 22, 2006 at 7:00 p.m. 
 



 3 

e. Budget and Property 
Craig said that they met last night.  With regard to the bussing contract, there is an $860,000+ 
difference between the two bidders.  The lower bid comes in at $189,322 less than budgeted for 
the upcoming year.  Goffstown Truck is the winning bidder.  The new fleet gets better mileage by 
10% - 20%.  Further negotiation will take place.  Craig said that we would continue to look at 
additional ways to cost save.   
Craig Hicks motioned to approve the winning bid by Goffstown Truck.  Butch Estey second.  
Dan Harper asked if there would be a fleet in the area.  Craig confirmed that there would.  Marsha 
Morrow asked where they would be parked.  Craig said that they are currently still planning.    
Keith said that he wanted to make sure that the motion said that it was under the 
understanding that Keith and Marian could continue to negotiate with Goffstown Truck for 
further cost savings.  Stewart Brock asked about staffing.  He said that a change in staffing could 
be very disruptive to younger students.  Keith said that the work force to be drawn from is limited.  
The new vendor could draw in the existing drivers. We will see how it plays out.  Goffstown is 
currently with Londonderry, Hudson and Hooksett.  References were checked.   
Unanimous.   
 
Craig said that by the end of this school year, the administrators were asked to work on the budget 
so that the dialogue of budgeting could be discussed six months earlier than normal.  Future topics 
are the Armar maintenance contract.  Capital improvements will be discussed.  A new student 
population snap shot will be looked at.  The next Budget and Property meeting will take place on 
June 13th.   
 

f. Personnel 
1. Nomination List 

Dan Harper said that they did not meet.  Dan Harper motioned to accept the nomination list 
provided in the Board packet this evening.  Craig Hicks second.  Unanimous. 
 

g. Staff Development 
Linda Potter said that staff development money was left over.  Staff may apply for further money 
that can be applied to additional classes.   
 

h. Communications 
None.   
 
6. Old Business 
 a.  Policy Review Timeline 
Tom Welden distributed the Time Line Ð Short List. (See attached)   
Tom said that the bus contract would soon come off the list.  Administrators have been given the 
go ahead to settle oil contracts as they see fit.   
Policy review timeline Ð distributed by Keith Ð NHSBA Priority. (See attached).  Suggested 
completion dates are listed.  Tom Welden said that alternative certifications, for example, athletics 
should be listed.  Gail asked if it made sense for the policies to go to the subcommittees first.  She 
suggested that it might make more sense to come to the Board first.  Tom Welden said that it has  
been discussed that the second Board meeting of the month might be the venue to take care of 
these items.  Gail said that it might be hard to place each one into a specific subcommittee.  She 
asked for clarification on the column titled ÒAssignedÓ.  Keith said that that column reflects which 
committee has been assigned that policy.  For example, budget, education etc.  Gail asked Craig 
how he felt about taking on these policy issues.  Craig said that he would like to do it together.  He 
said he is a numbers guy more than a policy person.  Tom said that conducting this business 
during the second monthly meeting might be best.  Alternative Certification and Sex Offender 
Policy need to be looked at.  Tom Welden said that the Boards number one job is to set policy.   
Tom said that goal setting is something we have been working on.  Stewart Brock spoke about 
ÒPolicy ReviewÓ and ÒReport CardÓ.  Stewart endorsed the work Keith has already done.  (See 



 4 

StewartÕs documents attached)  Stewart asked the Board to review his work, if they like the 
language, it can be adopted.  Stewart said that the discussion on the ÒReport CardÓ and how we 
measure how well we do as a district and as a Board needs to take place.  Generic wording and 
raw terms were stated.  Tom Welden thanked Stewart for his work.  Butch Estey distributed a copy 
of the goal ÒTo establish a zero tolerance in our schools and school activities of alcohol, tobacco 
and illegal substances, through policies, prevention, education and strict enforcement.Ó (See 
attached).  Butch said that both he and Beverly Bacon worked together on this goal.  Craig asked 
how we get to this first part of analyzing what current policies exist.  Do we want the administrators 
to align the goal with the statement?  Ray Cote said that he thinks that a reprioritization should be 
done by administration.  Keith Burke suggested that all of the related policies be extracted.  Craig 
asked what the sense of the Board was as far as timeframe.  Keith said that there are a lot of 
policies that need to be attacked.  Nine policies need review in June.  Craig asked if we wanted 
this done by the next school year.  Butch said that we should have this in place by the next school 
year so that the kids are working under one policy without change.  Beverly Bacon said that the 
PBIS policy that will be rolling out shortly are strict and will dovetail with what the Board is doing 
here.  Keith said that at the next meeting all related policies could be attached and a direction 
could be decided upon.  Policy with handwritten notes can be provided on CD if desired.  Ray 
asked if a policy needed to be on the table for a certain amount of time.  Tom Welden said that it is 
for 30 days.  Keith said that that policy could be reviewed.  Ray Cote spoke about the Technology 
Goal.   
Gail Cromwell spoke about the financial goal. (see attached)  She said that it is to provide a quality 
education that our taxpayers can afford.  She said that we need to have a target each year for a 
minimum increase in the district assessment.  Keith asked that when looking at program 
evaluation, how do costs relate to the effectiveness rather than the benefit of the program.  The 
effectiveness is easier to measure.  Cost effective vs. cost benefit can be looked at.  Bill McKinnon 
said that you could have a very cost effective program with no benefit.  Should we have it?  Bart 
said that the words are important.  He doesnÕt understand the usefulness of the sentence stating, 
ÒÉt he taxpayers can affordÓ.  Bart asked what that meant and who measures it.  For example, the 
automotive program is expensive.  He would hate to argue that there is no benefit in light of the 
recent success two students in the program have enjoyed.  Gail said that often the Board loses 
sight that the taxpayers are paying for the programs that we so easily say yes to.  We have a 
responsibility to have some common sense about what we put into the budget.  Gail said that three 
towns did not pass the last budget.  When they see an increase of almost 8% we need to consider 
putting new things into the budget.  We need to have some sense of what the taxpayers can 
afford.  She agrees that it is fuzzy.  Craig said that he doesnÕt disagree.  District assessment is 
critical.  Unfortunately outside forces are telling us what to do.  Until we have some education 
about our revenues, we are a slave to district assessment.  We are told to do things that we have 
to comply.  We could state a 0% increase but then we are told to do certain things that would make 
it impossible to meet that %.  Tom told Gail that he agreed with her and that we have done things 
that are important.  For example, the bus contract has been reviewed.  Some work has been made 
with the health benefits to staff.  Expenses are being cut in some areas and are going up in others.  
Bill McKinnon spoke about online courses.  He said we are looking to use online courses to 
increase the offerings and to potentially eliminate those courses that are not practical to staff.  In 
addition, the online course may offer a superior product that might replace existing courses.  Keith 
said that ÒVirtual High SchoolÓ is being looked at for next year.  Bart asked about replacing present 
course offerings that are not cost-effective.  How is that determined?  Bill said that if only three 
students enroll in a course, do we provide a teacher to them?  Marsha asked about finding a 
certified teacher providing the offerings.  Keith said that certified qualified teachers are found to 
teach these online courses.  Keith said that he hoped that this could all be determined by the end 
of the school year so that training could be underway.  Beverly Bacon asked what the minimum 
number of students currently was to run a course.  Sue Dell said that roughly ten students are 
needed to run a course.  An AP course could have a very small enrollment one year but that the 
course might want to be run to see if it was a trend or a one-year low.  Bill McKinnon said that for 
an online course, one student was needed to run a course.  He said that he is very encouraged 



 5 

that we are looking at this.  Seth Chatfield, reporter, asked Sue Dell if there were any classes or 
programs that were dropped for these reasons.  Sue Dell said that Chemistry 2 was one recently 
dropped.  She said that she was struggling with how to provide sufficient staffing and maintain an 
elective program for the juniors and seniors.  Peter Martel, community member, asked what the 
cost was for a student to take a class and where does the money come from.  Keith said that if we 
provide a teacher, the company provides a stipend.  The district would have to free up that teacher 
for one period.  It is possible that not a single ConVal student would be taking that class.  The only 
other fees are startup fees in the vicinity of $5,000 plus smaller fees.  The total cost is 
approximately $5,000 and are lower the second year if you continue because of lower training 
costs.  It could be very cost effective.  Craig Hicks said that he wanted to clarify to Peter Martel that 
online courses gives our students the ability to take any course.  These topics will be further 
prioritized at the next Board meeting on June 6th. 
 
7.  Approval of Manifests (Board Vote Required) 
Keith Burke read that the Business Administrator certifies that manifests 130 Ð 134 totaling  
$640,393.51 and Payroll 23 totaling $779,632.53 and Sub Run 132 and 133 totaling $20,694.43 
have been reviewed by her and found to be proper charges against the Contoocook Valley School 
District for goods and/or services received and have been properly processed prior to their 
submittal to the School Board.   
 
Craig Hicks motioned to accept the approval of the manifests.  Butch Estey second.  
Unanimous.   
  
8. Non-Public Session:  RSA 91-A:3, IIc 
Dan Harper motioned to go into non-public session for reasons of personnel and 
negotiations.  Unanimous. 
 
 
Respectfully Submitted, 
 
 
___________________________ 
Brenda Marschok 


